
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
      

DATE:  Wednesday, March 18, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING: 7:00 P.M. 
 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

 1.  Call the Meeting to Order  
 

 2.  Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof. 
 

≠ 3.  Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting. 
 
(a) Council Meeting – March 4, 2015 
(b) Closed Council Meeting –March 4, 2015  
(c) Public Meeting Minutes – Dave Hamilton -  January 21, 2015 
 

   

 4.  Business Arising Out of the Minutes. 
 

 5.  PUBLIC MEETINGS  
 
None.  
 

 6.  COMMUNICATIONS  

  1. CBM Aggregates  
Roszell Pit – Pit License No. 625189  
6618 Roszell Road 
 
(a) Report from Dance Environmental Inc. regarding 2014 Ecological and 

Aquatic Monitoring Report Roszell Pit, Puslinch Township ARA License 
No. 625189 dated December 22, 2014.  

 
(b) Correspondence from GWS Ecological & Forestry Services Inc. 

regarding 2014 Ecological and Aquatic Monitoring Report for the Roszell 
Pit dated February 27, 2015.  

 
 
 
 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

  2. CBM Neubauer Pit, License No. 625284 
Part Lot 27, Concession 1 
 

(a) Correspondence from Groundwater Science Corp. regarding 2014 
Groundwater Monitoring Summary, CBM Neubauer Pit, License No. 
625284, Part Lot 27, Concession 1, Puslinch Township dated 
January 27, 2015. 
 

(b) Correspondence from Harden Environmental regarding Neubauer Pit 
– 2014 Monitoring Report dated February 11, 2015.   

 
  3. Highway 6, Morriston Bypass  

 
(a) Correspondence from Minister of Transportation, Steven Del Duca to 

Ted Arnott, MPP, Wellington-Halton Hills dated February 17, 2015. 
   

 ≠ 4. Wellington County Trail Funding Program  
 

(a) County of Wellington Planning Committee Report regarding 
Wellington County Trail Funding Program dated February 12, 2015.  

 
A resolution has been prepared that staff note for the 2016 Budget  
the Parkland Trail Development Project at the Puslinch Community 
Centre lands be funded in part through the Wellington County Trail 
Funding Program.  
 

 ≠ 5. Aggregate Assessment Appeals  
 

(a) Correspondence from the Township of Puslinch to Municipal 
Property Assessment Corporation regarding Valuation of Aggregate 
Producing Properties dated March 18, 2015.  

 
A Resolution has been prepared requesting Council to support 
sending this letter.  
 

  6. Niska Road Bridge Improvements  
 

(a) Information package regarding Municipal Class Environmental 
Assessment for Niska Road Bridge Improvements – Public 
Information Centre #1, November 27, 2014.   

 

P a g e  | 2 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

  7.  Badenoch Community Centre Committee 
 

(a) Correspondence from Victoria Bamforth regarding Badenoch 
Community Centre Board Members dated March 9, 2015.   
 

A By-Law has been prepared to appoint the members.  
 

 ≠ 8.  Intergovernmental Affairs 
 
(a) Various correspondence for review. 

 
 7. 

 
 DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS  

   None.  
    
 8.  REPORTS 

 
 ≠ 1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  

 
(a) Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Response Report for February, 

2015. 
 

 ≠  (b) Report FIR-2015-001 – Fire Dispatch Services Agreement with City of 
Guelph.  

 
  2. Finance Department 

  
 ≠  (a) Report FIN-2015-010 – Remuneration and Expenses Paid to Members 

of Council and Others During the Year 2014  
 

 ≠  (b) Report FIN-2015-011 – Temporary Borrowing By-law  
 

 ≠  (c) Report FIN-2015-012 – 2014 Development Charges  
 

 ≠  (d) Report FIN-2015-013 – Council One Third Tax Free Allowance  
 

 ≠  (e) Report FIN-2015-014 – Treasurer’s Investment Report for 2014  
  

 ≠  (f) December, 2014  
 

i. Financial Report as of December 31, 2014  
ii. Cheque Register –December 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014   

P a g e  | 3 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

 ≠  (g) January, 2015 
 

i. Financial Report as of  January 31, 2015  
ii. Cheque Register – January 1, 2015 to January 31, 2015 
iii. Voided Cheque Register January 1, 2015 to January 31, 2015 
iv. Financial Report By Department – January, 2015  
v. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and 

Expenditures – All Departments –  January 2015   
 

  3. Administration Department 
 
None.   
 

  
≠ 

4. Planning and Building Department 
 
(a) Chief Building Official Report – February 2015  
 

 ≠  (b) Report PD-2015-006  - Agreement with R&C Holdings Inc. and 2120826 
Ontario Ltd. – Part Lot 20, Concession 7   

 
  5. Roads & Parks Department  

 
None.  
 

  
 

6.  Recreation Department 
 

None.   
 

 9.  NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
None.  
 

 10.  COMMITTEE  MINUTES  
 
None.  
 

 11.  MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 12.  CLOSED MEETING  
 

None.  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

 13.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

≠ 14.  BY-LAWS  
 

(a) A by-law to authorize the entering into an Agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing in order to participate in 
the Ice Storm Assistance Program  (Resolution 2015-061) 
 

(b) A by-law to authorize the temporary borrowing of funds to meet 
current expenditures of the Corporation of the Township of 
Puslinch during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.  
(Report FIN-2015-011) 
 

(c) A by-law to appoint members to the Badenoch Community Centre 
Committee and repeal by-laws 27/12 and 8/13. 
 

(d) A by-law to authorize the entering into an Agreement with R&C Job 
Holdings Inc.  and 2120826 Ontario Inc. (Report PD-2015-006)  
 

≠ 15.  CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of 
the Township of Puslinch  
 

≠ 16.  ADJOURNMENT  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

   
M I N U T E S 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, March 4, 2015  
TIME:   12:30 P.M. 

 
The March 4, 2015 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 
12:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle. 
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   
 

Mayor Dennis Lever 
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth 
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 
3. Mary Hassan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Steve Goode, Fire Chief 

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1.  Marc Reid  
2. Kathy White  
 
  

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  

 
3A. CLOSED MEETING  

 
Council was in closed session from 12:34 p.m. to 12:39 p.m. 
Council recessed from 12:40 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding personal matters 

about an identifiable individual including municipal or local board employees, litigation 
or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – 11 Lake Avenue 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Krayishnik – 6643 Concession 
2. 

 
Resolution No. 2015-079:    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 
 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding personal matters 

about an identifiable individual including municipal or local board employees, litigation or 
potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 

Page 1 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – 11 Lake Avenue 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Krayishnik – 6643 Concession 
2. 

 
CARRIED 

 
Resolution No. 2015-080:     Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council move into open session.   

 
CARRIED 

 
 

Resolution No. 2015-081:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
Seconded by Councillor Stokley 

 
That the Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding personal 
matters about an identifiable individual including municipal or local board employees, 
litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – 11 Lake Avenue be received. 
 
CARRIED  

 
 

Resolution No. 2015-082:    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That the Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 
potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – Krayishnik – 6643 Concession 2 be received. 

 
CARRIED 

 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 

Resolution No. 2015-083:    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding 

 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  

 
(a) Council Meeting – February 18, 2015 
(b) Council Budget Meeting –February 18, 2015 
 

CARRIED 
 

 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 

 
None.  
 

Page 2 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  

 
*note this meeting will be held on March 11, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. Municipal Complex, 
7404 Wellington Rd 34. 
 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting –March 11, 2015 
(b) Report PD-2015-004-  Public Meeting – Site Alteration File L04/REI Marc & Andrea 

Reid – 7827 Wellington Road 36 
   
Council requested that given the interest being expressed on this matter and in order to 
facilitate seating requirements, that the location of the Public Meeting be changed from the 
Township offices to the Puslinch Community Centre.   Staff advised that the Community 
Centre was available that evening and arrangements would be made to change the 
location of the meeting.  
 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  

1. Source Protection Municipal Implementation Fund  
  

(a) Draft Correspondence from Township to Minister of the Environment and Climate 
Change regarding Source Protection Municipal Implementation Fund. 

 
Karen Landry CAO/Clerk indicated that as discussed during the 2015 Budget discussions  
the funds for the Source Protection Municipal Implementation Funding must be spent by 
December 31, 2015. Given that a number of the Source Water Protection Plans will not be 
approved to late 2015, the Township, along with the support of the County of Wellington 
are recommending that a letter be provided to the Minister of the Environment and Climate 
Change requesting an extension, in order to allow sufficient time to complete funding 
eligible activities.   

 
Resolution No. 2015-084:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley  
 

That Council receive the draft correspondence from the Township to the Minister of the 
Environment and Climate Change regarding Source Protection Municipal Implementation 
fund; and  
 
That Council supports the provision of this letter; and  
 
That staff forward the correspondence to the Minister of the Environment and Climate 
Change. 
 
CARRIED 

 
2. Ontario Drinking Water Systems  

 
(a) 2014 –Optional Annual Report Template for Township of Puslinch. 

 
 Resolution No. 2015-085:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive and approve the Ontario Drinking Water Systems – Annual Report 
Template for Puslinch Community Centre, Township of Puslinch, SMNR – Small Municipal 
Non-Residential – January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  

 
CARRIED 

  

Page 3 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

3. Memorial Dedication Provincial Highway  
 
(a) Correspondence from Ted Arnott, MPP Wellington-Halton Hills regarding Township 

support – renaming of Highway 6 – the “Jack Johnson Memorial Highway”. 
  

Resolution No. 2015-086:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council receive the correspondence from Ted Arnott, MPP Wellington-Halton Hills 
regarding Township support – renaming of Highway 6 – the “Jack Johnson Memorial 
Highway” and  

 
That Council supports the renaming of Highway 6 – the “Jack Johnson Memorial Highway”; 
and  

 
That Staff provide Ted Arnott, MPP with a copy of this Resolution. 
 
CARRIED 
  
4. University of Guelph – Mill Creek Pit – Licence No. 5738 

Lots 21-24, Conc. 2 – 7115 Concession 2   
 
A notation was made that although the subject line of the correspondence received 
from the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry indicated “Phase 4” that the 
information contained in the body of the correspondence related to “Phase 5”.  
 
(a) Correspondence from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry regarding 

Approval to commence extraction in new Phase 4, Mill Creek Operation, License 
#7538, Part Lots 21-24, Concessions 1 & 2, Township of Puslinch, County of 
Wellington. 

 
5. Mini Lakes Mobile Home Community  

 
(a) Report from Stantec Consulting Ltd. regarding Mini Lakes Mobile Home Community 

Quarterly Monitoring Program – 4th Quarter 2014 dated January 30, 2015. 
 

(b) Correspondence from GM Blue Plan Engineering regarding review of Mini Lakes 
Mobile Home Community Quarterly Monitoring Program 4th Quarter 2014 dated 
February 25, 2015   

 
6. Wellington County Farm Safety Committee  

 
(a) Karen Landry – Change in Committee Appointment. 

 
 Resolution No. 2015-087:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 

That Mayor Dennis Lever resign from his appointment as Township of Puslinch  
representative of the Wellington County Farm Safety Committee; and  
 
That Council appoint County Councillor, Don McKay, as the Township of Puslinch 
representative on the Wellington County Farm Safety Committee; and  
 
That staff advise the Wellington County Farm Safety Committee of this appointment.  
  
CARRIED 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

7. Intergovernmental Affairs 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.  
 

Resolution No. 2015-088:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for March 4, 2015 Council 
meeting be received. 
 
CARRIED 

 
7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

  
1.  Mr. Steve Langlois regarding Township Draft Recreation and Parks Master Plan. 
 

Mr. Langlois made a presentation to Council with respect the draft recommendations 
contained in the Recreation and Parks Master Plan regarding the areas of: service 
delivery, community centers, sports fields, Puslinch Community Centre park land 
expansion, parks open spaces, trails and other park amenities.   Mr. Langlois advised 
Council of the next steps to be taken in the presentation of the draft plan to the 
community and finalization of the Recreation and Parks Master Plan.      
 
Council thanked Mr. Langlois for his presentation.  Council advised that the 
recommendations with respect to branding and creation of the recreation inventory are 
welcomed recommendations, but did indicate that some of the recommendations 
presented may be considered controversial and stressed the urgency to seek and 
engage the public and stakeholder’s input before a final plan is presented.   
 
Resolution No. 2015-089:    Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the presentation from Mr. Steve Langlois, Principal Planner, 
Monteith Brown Planning Consultants regarding the Recreation and Parks Master Plan.    

 
CARRIED 

 
 
2.  Ms. Sally Slumskie, Partner and Mr. Thomas DiCarlo, Manager at BDO Canada LLP 

regarding 2014 Township of Puslinch Financial Statements.   
 

Mr. DiCarlo made a presentation with respect to the 2014 Financial Statements. Ms. 
Slumskie made a presentation to Council which provided highlights of the final year end 
letter to Council.  

 
Council requested that staff obtain a copy of the power point presentation and a copy be 
placed on the Township’s website.    

 
Mayor Lever requested clarification to the information contained in the slide regarding 
cash available and requested that the slide be amended to present the information from 
left to right, so as to provide a clearer understanding.      

 
Resolution No. 2015-090:    Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Council receive the presentation from Ms. Sally Slumskie, Partner and Mr. Thomas 
DiCarlo, Manager at BDO Canada LLP regarding 2014 Township of Puslinch Financial 
Statements; and  

 

Page 5 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

That Council receive the Final Year End Letter to Council regarding the Audit of the 
amended Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, from BDO 
Canada LLP dated March 4, 2015.  
 
CARRIED 
 

 
8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
None.  
 

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Taxes re:  Chapter 25, Section 
357, 358, the Municipal Act, S.O., 2001.  

 
Resolution No. 2015-091:    Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council does hereby authorize the applications for Cancellation, Reduction or 
Refund of Taxes chapter 25, section 357 or 358 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as follows:  
 

Year Application # Roll # Write Off Amount 
2014 02/15 4-02302 $232.05 
2014 01/15 4-02302 $2,462.36 
2014 03/15 2-05715 $9,275.20 

 
CARRIED 

 
(b) Report FIN-2015-008- Rural Economic Development Program – Township of 

Puslinch Community Improvement Plan – Execution of Agreement.  
 

 
Resolution No. 2015-092:      Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Report FIN-2015-08 regarding the Rural Economic Development Program – 
Township of Puslinch Community Improvement Plan - Execution of Agreement be 
received; and 

 
That Council enact a By-law authorizing the entering into an Agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the Minister of Agriculture, 
Food and Rural Affairs in order to participate in the Rural Economic Development 
Program as outlined in Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-08. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(c) Report FIN-2015-009  - 2015 Remuneration By-laws 
 
Resolution No. 2015-093:    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 
That Report FIN-2015-09 regarding 2015 Remuneration By-laws be received; and 
 
That Council enact a By-law to establish the rates of remuneration to Staff as outlined 
in Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-09; and 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

That Council enact a By-law to establish the rates of remuneration to members of 
Council, Committees and other Appointments as outlined in Schedule B to Report FIN-
2015-09. 
 
CARRIED 
 

3. Administration Department 
 
None.  

 
4. Planning and Building Department  

  
None.  
 

5. Roads & Parks Department  
 
None.  

 
6. Recreation Department 
 

None.  
 
 
9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  

  
None.  
 

10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

a) Recreation Committee – December 16, 2014  
b) Fire and Rescue Committee – November 19, 2014 

 
Resolution No. 2015-094:      Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council hereby receives the following minutes as information:  
 

(a) Recreation Committee – December 16, 2014 
(b) Fire and Rescue Committee – November 19, 2014 

 
CARRIED 

 
11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  
ROMA/OGRA Conference – February 22 to 25, 2015  
 
Councillor Fielding advised that she attended a number of interesting and informative 
sessions at the conference including a session on social media and the upcoming 
challenges faced by municipalities.  Councillor Fielding advised that she also attended the 
Minister’s Forum and an interesting presentation from Minister of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing Ted McMeekin regarding caring for the homeless.  
 
Councillor Bulmer advised that he attended a number of interesting sessions at the 
conference.  Councillor Bulmer advised that he together with Councillor Fielding also 
attended the TAPMO meeting.  Councillor Bulmer thanked Mayor Lever for the invitation to 
the meeting and commented that there were a number of interesting items on the Agenda.  
Councillor Bulmer requested that future TAPMO Agendas be circulated to Council for their 
discussion and to provide feedback and comments on behalf of the Township to the 
committee.    

Page 7 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

 
Councillor Bulmer advised that he attended an interesting session on Economic 
Development but was disappointed that the presentation did not include any case studies.  
Councillor Bulmer attended sessions on accessible public spaces and active transportation.  
Councillor Bulmer indicated that Public Health Units may be able to assist with funding 
opportunities for active transportation initiatives.  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he also attended the conference as well as the TAPMO meeting.    
Mayor Lever was pleased to see a lot of new faces at the TAPMO meeting and had an 
opportunity to meet a number of the new Mayors.    
 
Mayor Lever advised that he also attended a number of interesting an informative sessions 
at the conference including a session on new municipal revenue tools and information 
regarding how municipal items should be funded. Mayor Lever advised that information 
regarding the session would be posted on ROMA/OGRA website and requested that once 
available this information be included in a Council package.  
 
Mayor Lever indicated the other interesting sessions he attended included:  Engineers 
without Boarders, Minister’s Forum, including information regarding a review of the Ontario 
Municipal Board and review of all legislative plans in GTA area.  Mayor Lever also attended 
breakout sessions regarding managing excess soil.      
 
Grand River Conservation Authority Annual General Meeting  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he attended the AGM on Friday, February 27th where the Board 
passed their 2015 Budget.   
 
Grand River Source Protection Plan Public Consultation – Meeting Location Change   
 
Mayor Lever advised that after completion of the March 4, 2015 Council Agenda Package 
that the Township received notice that the March 31, 2015 meeting to be held in Fergus will 
now be held at the Centre Wellington Sportsplex, 550 Belsyde Avenue E. Fergus, in the 
Unity Hall beginning at 7 p.m. and not the Aboyne Hall as previously announced.  All other 
meeting locations remained unchanged.    
 
City of Cambridge Black Bridge Road Public Information Centre  
 
Mayor Lever advised that after completion of the March 4, 2015 Council Agenda package, 
the Township received notice that as part of the Environmental Assessment process being 
conducted by the City of Cambridge, that a Public Information Centre will be held on 
Monday, March 9, 2015 from 4 p.m. to 8 p.m. with a presentation to be made at 7 p.m. at 
the Holiday Inn Cambridge Hespeler Galt, 200 Holiday Inn Drive, Cambridge.  
 
 

12. CLOSED MEETING 
 

See Item No. 3A 
 

13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 

14. BY-LAWS:  
 
(a) A by-law to authorize the entering into an Agreement with Her Majesty the Queen in 

Right of Ontario as represented by the Minister of Agriculture and Food and Rural 
Affairs – Rural Economic Development Program for the Community Improvement Plan; 
 

(b)  A by-law to establish the Working Reserves and Reserve Funds for the Corporation of 
the Township of Puslinch and repeal By-Law No. 023/14.  

Page 8 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

 
(c) A by-law to to establish the rates of remuneration for Staff of the Corporation of the 

Township of Puslinch (“Township”) and to repeal By-law No. 034/14.  
 

(d) A by-law to establish the remuneration payable to Council, Committees, and other 
Appointments of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch (“Township) and repeal 
By-law No. 035/14. (Resolution No. 2015-076 and Report FIN-2015-009)  

 
Resolution No. 2015-095:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That the following By-laws be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 19/15 being a by-law to authorize the entering into an Agreement with Her 

Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the Minister of Agriculture and 
Food and Rural Affairs – Rural Economic Development Program for the Community 
Improvement Plan.  
 

(b) By-Law 20/15 being a by-law to establish the Working Reserves and Reserve Funds for 
the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch and repeal By-Law No. 023/14. 
 

(c) By-Law 21/15 being a by-law to establish the rates of remuneration for Staff of the 
Corporation of the Township of Puslinch (“Township”) and to repeal by-law No. 034/14. 
 

(d) By-Law 22/15 being a by-law to establish the remuneration payable to Council, 
Committees, and other Appointments of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch 
(“Township”) and repeal By-law No. 035/14.  
  
CARRIED 

 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 

Township of Puslinch  
 

Resolution 2015-096:     Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
Seconded by Councillor Roth 

 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 

 
• By-Law 23/15 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the 

Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 4th day of 
March, 2015. 

 
CARRIED 
 

 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 

Resolution No. 2015-097:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  
Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That Council hereby adjourns at  3:29 p.m.    
 
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

     Dennis Lever, Mayor 

Page 9 of 10 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
March 4, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 
 

    
 ________________________________________ 

  Karen Landry, CAO Clerk 

Page 10 of 10 
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TWONSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

DATE: Wednesday February 11, 2015 

TIME: 7:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Puslinch Municipal Complex 

FILE NUMBER: D14/HAM – Bill & Lisa Hamilton 

MEMBERS: Councillor Matthew Bulmer - Chair 
 Councillor Susan Fielding 
 Councillor Ken Roth 
 Councillor Wayne Stokley 

The Chair welcomed those attending the Public Meeting. 

The Chair advised that purpose of the Public Meeting is to inform and provide the public with the 
opportunity to ask questions, or to express views with respect to the Zoning By-law Amendment 
commenced by the Applicant: Bill and Lisa Hamilton, regarding their property located at 7652 
Wellington Road 34.  

The Chair advised that the members of Council are here to observe and listen to public 
comments; however, they will not provide a position on the matter. 

Kelly Patzer, on behalf of the Chair, informed attendees when Council makes a decision, should 
you disagree with that decision, the Planning Act provides you with an opportunity to appeal this 
application to the Ontario Municipal Board for a hearing. Please note that if a person or public 
body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or written submissions to the Township 
of Puslinch before the decision is made, the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the 
decision of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board.  In addition, if a person or 
public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting, or make written comments to 
the Township of Puslinch before the decision is made, the person or public body may not be added 
as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of 
the Board, there are reasonable grounds to do so.

The Chair noted that the Planning Act requires that at least one Public Meeting be held for each 
development proposal.  

The Chair instructed the format of the Public Meeting is as follows:  

• The applicant will present the purpose and details of the application and any further 
relevant information. 

• Following this the public can obtain clarification, ask questions and express their 
views on the proposal.  

• Council will then have the opportunity to obtain clarification and ask questions of the 
applicant 

• The applicant and staff will attempt to answer questions or respond to concerns this 
evening. If this is not possible, the applicant and/or staff will follow up and obtain this 
information. Responses will be provided when this matter is brought forward and 
evaluated by Council at a later date. 

Presentations 

Brian Beatty of Black, Shoemaker, Robinson and Donaldson, agent for Bill and Lisa Hamilton, 
introduced the proposed zoning amendment to permit a landscaping business on the property. 
He displayed a location map and described the buildings on the subject property which include 
a metal clad building that is used for material and vehicle storage and a converted barn used for 
storage. Brian Beatty noted that there are wetlands and Greenlands at the rear of the property.  

Brian Beatty stated that the property was severed 3-4 years ago and a minor variance was 
applied for on the retained parcel to permit the accessory buildings to remain until a main 
dwelling was built. The building permit for the house lapsed and the landscaping contractor’s 
yard has been operating for years without proper land use permissions. There are 2 – 3 
deliveries a week to the property. Brian Beatty stated Bill Hamilton’s business is Turf Plus which 
is located on Smith Street in Guelph. 

Page | 1  
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TWONSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

Brian Beatty confirmed that the Zoning By-law Amendment application incorrectly referenced a 
barn as a proposed permitted use.  

Brian Beatty stated that the Chief Building Official’s comments and Staff reports note Site Plan 
Control would be required for the use of a landscaping contractor’s yard and that would address 
landscaping, screening, fire requirements and stormwater management. 

Brian Beatty noted the County Planner had inquired to the nature of the business on the 
property and outlined that it is the storage of mulch, topsoil, rock and equipment such as a 
backhoe, skid steerer and small trucks to handle the material. There is one on-site employee, 2 
yard lights in proximity to the workshop and delivery trucks coming to the property 2 – 3 times a 
week. Site Plan, berming, screening and fencing will enhance land use compatibility to the 
adjacent neighbouring property.  

Brian Beatty concluded his presentation and welcomed questions from the gallery. 

Questions/Comments 

Sally Whittle of 7671 Wellington Road 34 lives across the road from the subject property and 
noted that the properties in the neighbourhood are expensive and questioned what will be done 
to protect neighbours from their property values going down and from a commercial business 
going in the middle of a residential area. 

Brian Beatty stated that the Official Plan recognizes small scale commercial businesses and 
believes that it is difficult to speculate on the potential impacts. Brian Beatty indicted Site Plan 
Control can address the issues of compatibility. 

Karen Dailous of 7658 Wellington Road 34 stated the property was severed October 2012 and a 
house was never built and a new driveway has not been constructed for the severed property. 
There have been as many as 30 trucks in one day to the property. Big loaders and a large 
sifting machine are located on the property. The noise is horrendous and equipment is run 
seven days a week. She bought the house for quiet country living but the noise is louder than a 
gravel pit. 

Patricia Jones of 7664 Wellington Road 34 agrees with the noise created by the use on the 
property. At 6:30 a.m. noise is created by tailgates closing and the back-up beeping of trucks. 
After lunch they start washing gravel for 2 – 3 hours. The noise is irritating. She agrees with 
Sally Whittle in regards to the negative impact on property values and noted the increased truck 
traffic and the resulting safety concern for small children in the area. 

Fred Quinton of 7671 Wellington Road 34 inquired if there is any opportunity for this to operate 
as a retail operation in the future. History of landscape operations is they can sell nursery 
products. Would this zone change allow that use? 

Brian Beatty stated that there was no intention of having a retail operation on the property and 
the application makes clear the proposed permitted uses. 

Ed Dailous of 7658 Wellington Road 34 asked if the berms would be like the ones at a gravel pit 
and noted everything said of the proposed landscaping of the property is speculation. He is 
unable to rest due to the noise. The materials on site could be contaminating the land. He has 
watched the business blossom into a heavy duty landscaping business that also operates on 
Sundays. 

Brian Beatty stated he cannot speak to the required fencing but will work with the Township and 
the County. He is also unable to speak to the evolution of the business. 

Karen Dailous stated there is no mention to the hours and/or days of operation of the business. 
The family uses the machinery at all times. 

Mike Dube of 7646 Wellington Road 34 stated he is the neighbour on the other side of the 
Hamilton’s and wishes to see this application go forward. One day 30 trucks did come in and he 
went next-door to ask what was going on. The owner addressed his concerns. He works during 
the day and is home in the evenings and does not find the noise disturbing. 

Karen Dailous stated her driveway is 40 feet away from the Hamilton’s. Proper Yards can be 
rented for landscaping uses. 

Page | 2  
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TWONSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

Michael Dailous of 7658 Wellington Road 34 lives next door to the Hamilton’s. He asked what is 
being done to ensure there is no soil contamination to protect the surrounding agricultural 
farmed lands. He questioned what is going to be done to ensure the business meets any noise 
and hours of operation requirements. 

Brian Beatty said a Hydrogeology Study would be done to ensure water quality. Noise readings 
could be taken to assess current noise levels as part of the technical review. 

Kathy White stated that the Planning Report did not list any negative impacts and questioned 
how this can be assessed without any studies. She is opposed to the application to allow 
commercial uses in a residential area as they cause a disruption to life and can negatively affect 
the privacy of neighbours. 

Kathy White questioned if the business in Guelph is adjacent to a residential area. 

Bill Hamilton replied that the business is located on Smith Street in Guelph, next to a residential 
area.  

Kathy White stated that the severance was granted and a house was never built on the property 
containing the accessory buildings, and questioned what happened to the $20,000 deposit 
taken by the Township for the accessory buildings, and inquired if the property is assessed 
commercial or residential. 

Kathy White stated the Grand River Conservation Authority (GRCA) has source water mapping 
that shows the lands are a significant ground water recharge area. She questioned how the 
equipment on the property is refueled, as no fuel storage is shown on the Site Plan. 

Brian Beatty stated the GRCA had no objection to the application. 

Kathy White asked if there has been a permit issued for the driveway on the severed lot. She 
questioned what a small scale operation is and what would prevent it from growing larger over 
the long term and have the taxes been paid as a residential or commercial property? She stated 
a zone change would be a permanent land use and the property would always be a landscape 
contractor’s yard and the residents in the area would bear the burden.  

Kathy White asked if there would be another Public Meeting for this application. 

The Chair responded that the Township has at least one Public Meeting for every zone 
amendment application. 

Sally Whittle stated the property is located in the Mill Creek Watershed and asked if the Friends 
of Mill Creek would comment on the application. 

The Chair stated that Friends of Mill Creek do not comment on planning applications. 

There were no further questions or comments and the Chair inquired if Council had any 
questions. 

Councillor Roth thanked everyone for coming to the Public Meeting. He asked if there has been 
or plans to be any salt stored on the property. 

Bill Hamilton responded no. 

Councillor Stokley asked what the future uses of the barn are and questioned if it should 
possibly not be there as the Township has been caught in several scenarios where owners do 
not go in the original intended permitted direction which has resulted in past OMB Hearings. 

Brian Beatty stated that the horses on the property have been sold and the barn will be used for 
storage.  

Councillor Stokley noted no decision has been made, but any Site Plan Agreement would need 
to be iron-clad, including any hours of operation. The application needs to be resolved in a 
manner that is acceptable to the majority.  

Councillor Fielding thanked everyone for attending; she shares a lot of their concerns, and 
stated Puslinch should be a place that is hospitable to residents in the community. She asked 
County Staff for clarification on the severance and zoning applications. 

Aldo Salis explained that the consent application severed off a portion of the property with the 
single family dwelling and the accessory buildings remained on the remnant parcel where a 

Page | 3  
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TWONSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

single family dwelling was proposed. The Township had conditions of severance that were 
satisfied and the consent has been approved. In terms of a zoning application, it is the 
landowners right to file an application.    

Councillor Fielding stated she has concerns with the water quality from the storage of materials 
on the property and doesn’t fully understand how the house was not built on the property. 

The Chair asked if the lands were to be un-severed would the uses of the buildings be 
permitted; and stated Puslinch does attract people due to the permission of home occupations 
but acknowledges this can be disruptive to some residents. 

Bill Hamilton stated he purchased the property on Smith Street 8 months ago, but it is not large 
enough to fix his equipment, which is what he uses the accessory building on the property for. 

Brian Beatty stated the Zoning By-law Amendment limits the property and use to one on-site 
employee. He does not have a handle on what would be considered small-scale versus medium 
scale, adding that the owner does not have any intention of adding any more structures. 

The Chair inquired if there are any uses permitted under home occupations that would have 
similar impacts as a landscaping contractor’s yard. 

Brian Beatty stated that the Public Meeting Information Report listed the zoning permissions for 
home occupations. 

The Chair stated he was unsure how effective Site Plan Control would be for a use that already 
exists as it is generally put in place prior to the use. 

Brian Beatty responded Site Plan would better organize the property and address necessary 
buffering and screening and it would satisfy the need to be clear how activities are being 
conducted on the property. A Stormwater Management Report could address any flooding on 
the property.  

Councillor Roth commented through the severance process a $20,000 deposit was refunded 
when the Building Permit was issued for the proposed dwelling and asked if the applicant was 
going to reinstate the deposit since the house was not built. 

Councillor Stokley commented that “scale” is an interesting point and asked if the scale of the 
operation has increased since the severance approval. 

Bill Hamilton responded that the scale of the use has decreased since the severance. The main 
purpose of the shop is to maintain the large equipment and the screener has been removed.  

Councillor Stokley inquired if the barn could also be used as a shop. 

Bill Hamilton responded that the barn is too small, being a quarter to an eighth of the size of the 
shop. 

Aldo Salis stated that a by-law could be drafted to restrict certain uses of the accessory 
buildings and limit the scale of the operation. 

The Chair asked if there were any more questions or comments from the public. 

Pat Quirk of 159 Dawn Avenue, Guelph, inquired if a house was located on the property would 
the landscaping contractor use be permitted. 

Aldo Salis responded that Agricultural Areas in the Official Plan do permit small scale 
commercial operations. 

Michael Dailous stated that it is an industrial use if machinery is being repaired on the property. 

Kathy White questioned if equipment repair versus a contractors yard changes the application 
and noted concerns with fuel storage. 

Bill Hamilton stated that he is maintaining his own equipment. 

There were no further questions and the Chair called an end to the public meeting and advised 
that Council would not be taking action on this proposal tonight. 

Brian Beatty stated he will work at compiling responses to the questions and comments made 
this evening. 

Page | 4  
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TWONSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

The Chair reminded the public to please sign in and register as a delegate to be informed of 
future public meetings.  

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

Page | 5  
 











































































































































Municipal Class Environmental 

Assessment for Niska Road 

Improvements

Public Information Centre #1 

November 27, 2014

5:00 PM – 7:00 PM

Kortright Presbyterian Church 

55 Devere Drive, Guelph



Welcome
to the Public Information Centre for 

the Niska Road Schedule C Class 

Environmental Assessment 

Please:

• Sign In

• Meet with Study Team Members

• Review the display materials and 

discuss your questions and ideas with 

the Study Team

• Fill in a comment sheet and return it to 

the Study Team in person, by email or 

fax by December 19, 2014



STUDY CORRIDOR



We are 

Here

MUNICIPAL CLASS EA FLOWCHART 



•Identify Problems and Opportunities

•Inventory natural, built, social/cultural and economic environmentsPhase 1

•Identify Alternative Solutions to Address the Problems

•Identify all reasonable alternative solutions

•Consider environmental and technical impacts on each alternative solution

•Identify preliminary preferred solutions

•Select a Preferred Solution to Address the Problems

•Evaluate preliminary preferred solutions based on public input and feedback

•Select a preferred solution to address the problems

Phase 2

•Identify Design Concepts to Implement the Preferred Solution

•Identify all reasonable alternative design concepts to implement the preferred solution 

•Consider environmental and technical impacts on each alternative design concept

•Identify preliminary preferred design concepts

•Select a Preferred Design Concept to Address the Problems

•Evaluate preliminary design concepts base d on public input and feedback

•Select a preferred design concept to address the problems

Phase 3

•Prepare and File the Environmental Study Report (ESR)

•Complete an ESR detailing all of the activities undertaken to date

•Issue the ESR for a 30-day public review period

•Address any concerns raised by the Minister of the Environment and Climate Change

•Notify the public and agencies of completion of the ESR and of the Part II Order provision in the EA Act

Phase 4

•Project Implementation

•Proceed to detailed design and construction of the project

•Monitor for environmental provisions and commitments
Phase 5

Municipal Class EA Process

We Are 

Here



Notice of 

Commencement 
Schedule B EA 

Published 

April 11, 2013

Community 

Workshop

June 27, 2013

Notice of 

Commencement of 
Schedule C EA 

Published 

October 17, 2014

CWG Meetings:

• CWG Selection 

Meeting 

November 10, 

2013

• CWG Meeting 

1 December 

10, 2013

• CWG Meeting 

2 January 21, 

2014

• CWG Meeting 

5 March 18, 

2014

• CWG Meeting 

4 June 2, 2014

• CWG Meeting 

5 August  12, 

2014

• CWG Meeting 

6 September 

30

Response 

Letters to 
Stakeholders 

and Direct 

Mailing to Local 

Residents as a 

Result of 

Published Notice 

of 

Commencement 

PIC #1: 

November 27th

from 5:00 -7:00 

p.m. at Kortright

Presbyterian 

Church 

Gymnasium 

Ongoing 

Communication 
with the public

Presentations to 

City Council

ESR Filing for 

Public Review

Stakeholder Consultation Timeline

We are here
CWG Class EA 

Objection Letter 
to MOE 

September 8, 
2014

Study Team 
Response to 

CWG Class EA  
Objection  Letter 

to MOE 

October 8, 2014

Over 100 
Responses to 

Community as a 
Result of 

Community 
Workshop

Advance copy 
of PIC #1 

boards send 
to CWG for 
review and 
comment

Implementation 
PIC #1 Summary 

Report
PIC #2 (TBD)

Notice of Commencement

Letter to Agencies

• GRCA

• Ministry of Natural 

Resources

• Hydro One

• Local Police

• Township of Puslinch

• Guelph Eramosa

Township

• Local School Board

• Aboriginal Affairs and 

Northern Development 

Canada

• Ministry of Aboriginal 

Affairs

• Ministry of Tourism, 

Culture and Sport

• Department of Fisheries 

and Oceans 

• Ministry of Agriculture

• Ministry of Infrastructure

• Transport Canada

• First Nations

• University of Guelph

April 17, 2014 

Meeting with 

Townships of 

Guelph-

Eramosa and 

Puslinch

February 3, 2015 

Meeting with 

Townships of 

Guelph-Eramosa

and Puslinch



City of Guelph Official Plan: Schedule 9A

Study 

Area

8.2.18 The City’s functional hierarchy of roads is a component of and ties into the Provincial 

Highway grid. The Provincial Highway grid through Guelph is illustrated on the Existing Road 

Network Schedule 9A. 

Collectors 

Within the City’s Official Plan Collector roads hold the following characteristics:

a) Collector roads are intended to move low to moderate volumes of traffic within specific areas 

of the City and collect local traffic for distribution to the arterial or Provincial highway system. 

b) Collectors are moderate speed design, having capacity for 2-4 lanes, usually undivided. 

c) Parking may be permitted.

d) The desirable right-of-way width shall range from 23 meters to 26 meters. 



Community Concerns

Following the initial Notice of Commencement issued in April 2013, the study team 

received several responses from local residents.  The following key concerns were raised.  

Written responses were provided to all stakeholders.

Comment / Concern Responses

Request for Schedule C Environmental Assessment 

Study to be undertaken.

As per the requirements of the Class EA process,

originally this study was advertised as a Schedule B. 

However, after considering concerns  raised by the 

community and requests for a more detailed analysis,  

the  study was elevated to a Schedule  C by the 

proponent – the City of Guelph.

Request for estimated costs for construction of a new 

bridge.

Once the preferred option chosen, a preliminary cost 

estimate will be conducted, taking into consideration 

various bridge design and mitigation measures. 



Community Concerns (continued)

Comment / Concern Responses

Increased traffic will be dangerous for wildlife and 

people and will negatively effect neighborhood.

Concerned about pedestrian safety and lack of sidewalks 

on Niska Road.

We acknowledge your concerns about risks to people 

and would like to note that one of the goals of the EA 

will be to improve public safety of the road corridor.  The 

City will not be increasing the number of vehicular travel 

lanes.  At present there is one vehicular travel lane in 

each direction and this will remain.  The City is 

considering implementing sidewalks and/ or bike lanes 

on both sides of the roadway and bridge, which would 

provide the public with a safe means of biking or walking 

through the study area and connecting to the existing 

trails on the west side of the Speed River.

Impact to fish. Impacts to fish and fish habitat are avoided using 

suitable mitigation measures that include: approved in-

water works timing windows, fish salvage (if required), 

water quality monitoring and limiting the duration of in-

water work.



Community Concerns (continued)

Comment / Concern Responses

Increased traffic will result in increased noise and air 

pollution.

As part of the assessment process the study team will 

conduct a desk top review that correlates the noise 

generated from traffic based in known and future traffic 

volumes, (based on MTO traffic noise protocols). Given 

that there are no rear yard recreational areas that are 

exposed to the road, noise attenuation fences will not be 

utilized.

Will/Can the EA consider traffic calming measures? The Project Team will be exploring options for traffic 

calming measures during the course of the EA study.  

These measures include: enforcement of truck 

restrictions, enforcement of speed limits, community 

signage, consideration for speed humps, and traffic lane 

markings (such as tiger teeth or hatched areas).



Community Concerns (continued)

Comment / Concern Responses

Request for expansion of study area to include Niska 

Road from bridge to Downey Road.

The EA scope of work includes the upgrading or 

replacement of the Niska Road bridge. The study area is 

defined in order to assess natural environmental impacts 

and mitigations. Even though the upgrading of Niska 

Road between bridge and Ptarmigan Drive does not 

require an EA, it has been included as part of the overall 

study and traffic analysis. The Project Team is addressing 

the traffic issues on a wider network basis including 

adjacent road and intersections  connected to Niska 

Road. The City's jurisdiction ends at the west side of the 

bridge, but the City works with surrounding Townships 

and County in addressing design and safety issues on 

common and shared roadways.

Concerned that there are not enough opportunities for 

public involvement.

The Municipal Class EA process is in the early stages of 

development and the City is committed to ensuring that 

there is full community involvement throughout the 

Class EA process. The City added a community working

group to the process and have continued to reach out to 

key community stakeholders.



Community Working Group
• In order to encourage active participation and 

cooperation between the project team and members of 

the community, a Community Working Group (CWG) was 

established at the onset of this Schedule C EA.

• The group initially consisted of 14 members of the 

community, most living within the vicinity of the project 

area, some from the surrounding community and one 

representative from Grand River Conservation Authority 

(GRCA).

• The CWG Terms of Reference stipulated a number of 

committee meetings would be conducted. To date a total 

of 7 meetings have been conducted covering all aspects 

of the Class EA and evaluation process.

• At each meeting, members were provided with materials 

to be discussed, which related to the project status, 

evaluation and process in order to promote dialogue and 

share ideas. 



Community Working Group’s 

Concerns

• At the onset of the CWG meeting process, CWG 
members were asked to provide a list of what were 
considered the most important issues. 

• These issues were discussed in detail at the meetings.
• The following issues were ranked as most important 

by the CWG members:

• Bridge safety 

• Preservation of  corridor viewscapes

• Protection of aquatic and terrestrial wildlife and 

wildlife habitat

• Preservation of recreational use of lands (water use, 

trail use, greenspace, cycling)

• Volume of truck traffic

• Volume of vehicular traffic

• Size of trucks

• Traffic speed on Niska Road

• Heritage value of bridge and streetscape

• Future development plans for GRCA Lands

• Implementation of traffic calming measures 



Existing Road Characteristics 



Existing Road Characteristics 
• Niska Road is currently classified as a collector road in the City of Guelph Official 

Plan. A collector road’s purpose is to:

• Collect vehicle trips and provide through movement for travel to/from 

arterials and expressways

• Serve land access 

• Traffic control on Niska Road is characterized by:

• All way stop at Ptarmigan Drive and Niska Road

• Stop sign control at Niska Road and Downey Road

• 50 km/h speed limit

• Pavement on Niska Road between the Niska Bridge and Ptarmigan Drive is 

approximately 6 meters wide, with a rural cross section. This section of road:

• Has severely cracked pavement in both urban and rural cross sections of 

the road corridor

• Has eroding ditches creating sedimentation in surrounding natural 

environment

• Requires pavement rehabilitation 

• Lacks pedestrian and cyclist amenities

• Lacks shoulders



Existing Bridge Characteristics 
• The Niska Road Bailey Bridge is a single lane bridge, installed in 

1974 as a ‘temporary bridge replacement.’

• Currently Niska Bridge is in need of repair due to:

• Poor structural condition

• Water encroaching against abutments

• Absence of pedestrian access

• Progressive undermining of northwest retaining wall

• Failure of northwest and northeast embankments

• Severe corrosion on both embankments

• Posted 5 tonne load limit 

• High estimated cost of complete repairs ranging from 

$800,000 to $1 Million based on 2013 Biennial Bridge 

Inspection Report



Existing Traffic Safety Conditions

• 16 reported collisions           

(6 involved personal injury)

• 2 head on collisions, 2 rear 

end collisions and 1 out of 

control/excessive speed at 

the Bailey Bridge

• 5 collisions at Niska/Downey 

intersection due to failure to 

yield right of way 

• 4 collisions at 

Niska/Ptarmigan intersection 

• 2 collisions on Niska Road 

between Ptarmigan Drive 

and Pioneer Trail 

• Between April 1, 2008 and 

April 30, 2013, there were 16 

reported collisions, mainly 

occurring between:

• 2009 and 2011

• 10:00 am and 7:00 pm

• May and September

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=ZBr9Fq5k17zh1M&tbnid=Hp0zySoK1YLT3M:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.guelphmercury.com/news-story/2749175-residents-worry-about-possible-widening-of-niska-road-bridge/&ei=R_4OVO6hJozAggTnvILQCg&bvm=bv.74649129,d.cWc&psig=AFQjCNGK-ydfNYa6QQoPu6ms1hbN_K42Fg&ust=1410355132699632


Existing Traffic Volume
Summary of Traffic Volume Studies conducted between October 17-23 2013

Section of Road Average 

weekly 24 

hour traffic 

eastbound

Average 

weekly 24 

hour traffic 

westbound

Highest weekday  

peak hour volume 

eastbound 

between 5:00 pm 

and 6:00 pm

Highest weekday 

peak hour volume 

westbound 

between 8:00 am 

and 9:00 am

# Cyclists

Niska Road 

between 

Ptarmigan Drive 

and Downey Road

1924 2001 248 189 77

Niska Road 

between

Ptarmigan Drive 

and Pioneer Trail 

2405 2247 366 302 111

Niska Road 

between Pioneer 

Trail and  the 

Speed  River/ Niska 

bridge 

2431 2315 379 302 120



Existing Traffic Conditions
Summary of Vehicle Speeds obtained from Traffic Studies conducted between 

October 17-23 2013

Niska Road Between 

Ptarmigan Drive and  

Downey Road

Niska Road Between 

Ptarmigan Drive and  

Pioneer Trail

Niska Road Between 

Pioneer Trail and 

Speed River/Niska 

Bridge

85% speed 

eastbound

60 60 74

85% speed 

westbound

59 59 70

Total Heavy Trucks 25 20 15

Notes:

• Note 1: An existing bylaw is in place prohibiting trucks with gross weights of 
4, 500 kg or greater from travelling on Niska Road

• Note 2: Total Heavy truck counts are those equal or greater than 4 or more 
axle units



Travel 

Origin

of Trips

Travel Destination of Trips

External HCN* KHN* Total

External 967 237 254 1458

HCN* 308 308

KHN* 265 265

Total 1540 237 254 2031

Niska Road Travel Survey

Origin/Destination of Trips Across Niska Road Bailey Bridge - June 19, 2014 

from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

A traffic survey was conducted on Thursday June 19, 2014 from 7:00am -

7:00pm on Niska Road at the Bailey bridge. Of a total of 2031 respondents:

• 967 were external trips

• 1064 were internal to the immediate neighbourhood

• 76 % of respondents felt that the corridor was important

• 61.5% of respondents were travelling for work

Purpose of Travel Total  Respondents

Work 1250

Shopping 125

School 49

Pleasure 409

Other 208

• *Internal Trips

• HCN: Hanlon Creek Neighbourhood (Edinburgh to Hanlon plus Kortright)

• KHN: Kortright Hills Neighbourhood (West of Hanlon and South of Hanlon 

Creek)

Purpose of Travel Survey  - June 19, 2014 from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 



Evaluation Factors Considered
The following factors were considered during evaluation of alternative options:

1. Socio Economic
• Niska Road transverses residential, open space and agricultural areas, 

then connects Guelph to Puslinch Township on the west side of the 
Speed River. 

• Areas immediately surrounding the Niska River and Hanlon Creek 
floodplains, adjacent to the study area have been designated as core 
greenland.

2. Cultural / Archaeological
• A Stage 1 Archaeological Assessment completed in June 2013 and 

June 2014 concluded that:

• Part of the western section of the proposed right-of-way has 
some potential for both Aboriginal and Euro-Canadian 
archaeological resources;

• Some sections of the proposed right-of-way have 
archaeological potential as located within 300 metres of a 
source of water and are potentially undisturbed;

• Other areas either disturbed or are associated with low laying 
poorly drained lands and therefore do not have archaeological 
potential; and 

• The right-of-way at the intersection with Downey Drive has 
potentially undisturbed area with some archaeological 
potential. 

• Stage 1 assessment recommendations:

• Well drained potentially undisturbed sections of proposed 
right-of-way should be subjected to a Stage 2 archaeological 
assessment prior to any construction activities; and 

• No soil disturbance or development activities should take place 
until after a Stage 2 archaeological assessment has been 
completed. 



CHER Report Summary 
• A Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report (CHER) and photographic documentation was 

completed in April 2014 by Unterman McPhail Associates 

• Through application of the “Criteria for Determining Cultural Heritage Value” and under 

‘Ontario Regulation 9/06’,  the Niska Road Bailey Bridge was determined to be of cultural 

heritage value or interest for design/physical, historical/associative and contextual reasons:

1. Rare example of a style, type 

• Is the only identified example of a Bailey bridge within the City of Guelph 

• Is a rare example of Bailey bridge within the Grand River watershed as one of only 

two examples of its type

• Is one of a limited number of Bailey bridges  located in Southern Ontario

2. Direct associations with a theme

• Is associated with the settlement history of the Township of Puslinch and the City 

of Guelph

• Remains an important crossing of the Speed River, providing important 

transportation links between the City of Guelph to the east and City of Cambridge 

to the west

3. Yields information that contributes to an understanding of a community or culture 

• Structure conveys the evolution of bridge building activities at the site

• Stone faced abutments would be representative of 19th century construction 

techniques, while the concrete rubble retaining walls and Bailey bridge structure 

relate clearly to the 20th century

4. Character 

• Bailey bridge structure with wood deck is well suited to its rural location and is 

important in maintaining the character of the area

5. Linkages 

• The Niska Road Bridge is physically, functionally, visually, and historically linked to 

its surroundings

6. Landmark 

• The Niska Road Bridge spans the Speed River, which forms part of the Grand 

River’s Canadian Heritage River designation, and is considered to be a physical 

landmark within the southwest part of the City of Guelph



CHER Report Summary 
• Despite determination of cultural heritage value or interest,  the Niska Road Bridge 

is not municipally designated under the Ontario Heritage Act (OHA). It is not 

included on a local heritage inventory of cultural heritage resources or a municipal 

heritage register adopted under the OHA.

• The following mitigation measures were recommended by the CHER Report: 

• An undertaking should not adversely affect cultural heritage resources, and 

intervention should be managed in such a way that its impact is sympathetic 

with the value of the resources.

• When the nature of the undertaking is such that adverse impacts are 

unavoidable it may be necessary to implement management or mitigation 

strategies that alleviate the deleterious effects to cultural heritage resources. 

Mitigation measures lessen or negate anticipated adverse impacts to cultural 

heritage resources.

• Mitigation measures may include such actions as  avoidance, monitoring, 

protection, relocation documentation, salvage, remedial landscaping, etc., 

and may be a temporary or permanent action.

• The Niska Road Bailey Bridge has cultural heritage value due to its structure 

and original use during war time. If bridge removal is chosen, measures will 

be taken to relocate or document the bridge’s significance.



3. Existing Natural Environment

• The study area is located within lands that have been identified 

in the City of Guelph OP as part of the Natural Heritage System, 

containing Significant Wetlands, Significant Natural Areas, 

Significant Wildlife Habitat and Crossings, Significant Valleylands 

and Significant Woodlands.

• The road corridor may provide wildlife habitat for the following 

species, including: raccoon, skunk, squirrel and beaver. These 

species are all tolerant to disturbance and are often found in 

residential areas. 

• Lands surrounding the study area including GRCA owned land 

north and south of Niska Road, contain potential habitat for 

coyote, frogs, turtles and a variety of breeding birds. 

• White-tailed deer wintering and movement habitat has been 

identified by Ministry of Natural Resources and Forests (MNNRF) 

on the north and south sides of Niska Road. The road design will 

consider impacts to wildlife movement.

• Salamander road mortality survey completed on April 8, 2014 

concluded that Niska Road is not being used as migratory path

for breeding amphibians.

• Several vegetation community types have been mapped in the 

study area, including: Mineral and Organic Mixed Swamps, Mixed 

Forests, Deciduous Forests, Cultural Meadows and Meadow 

Marshes. 

Evaluation Factors Considered



Species at Risk

• A desktop review of background information sources from government and 
review agencies indicated the potential for the study area to provide habitat 
for a number of species listed as significant within Ontario or federally.

• The Snapping Turtle, was observed on-site. This species is not federally 
designated, but is provincially designated as Special Concern, which is not 
regulated under the Endangered Species Act. 

• This specimen was observed in habitat within private GRCA lands. Impacts to 
this habitat are unlikely.  Alternative habitat for these species including 
wetland and river environments are supported onsite. Mitigation measures 
will be implemented to prevent potential negative effects, including road 
mortality.

Snapping Turtle

Chelydra serpentina

Special Concern 

(Provincial)



Aquatic Environment

General Area Description
• Sections of the Speed River Complex and Hanlon Creek are located within the study 

area. 

• Areas directly surrounding these waterbodies designated as Significant Natural Area 
within the City of Guelph Official Plan. All proposed work would likely occur within 
the road right of way, however if impacts to the core greenland are assumed, 
proper mitigation measures will be implemented. 

Amphibian Assessments
• Amphibian assessments were conducted at 2 sites within the study area in 2013 

and 2014.

• During the 2013 assessments, only 1 Spring Peeper was heard calling.

• During the 2014 assessments, several amphibian species were identified, but 
no Species at Risk (SAR) were observed.

Aquatic Assessments
• Aquatic assessment completed on May 8, 2013 and July 10, 2014 concluded that:

• A groundwater seep along the bank of the western side of the downstream 
section which adds a cool/coldwater input.

• Darters were observed during the 2013 assessment slightly downstream of 
this groundwater seep. This location has the potential to be darter/cyprinid 
spawning habitat and existed again during the 2014 assessment.

• No fish were observed during the 2014 assessment.

• Potential fish spawning habitat identified within the Speed River, particularly 
in the deep pools that the bailey bridge abutments have created conditions 
within the Speed River were not considered ideal for fish habitat, due to low 
water levels and relatively warm aquatic conditions. 



NATURAL HERITAGE SYSTEM



Viewscape: Existing Condition 

Niska Road at 

Ptarmigan Drive

Puslinch Side Showing 

Bridge and Viewscape

Looking East on Niska 

Road toward Guelph

Images provided by Niska Road Community Working Group Member - March 18, 2014



Existing Conditions - GRCA Lands

• Sections of Niska Road are flanked by Grand River Conservation 
Authority (GRCA) owned lands.

• Rehabilitation of the former Kortright Waterfowl Park  property has 
been recently initiated.

• GRCA will be undertaking a master planning process to address the 
future management and operation their land holdings in the vicinity of 
the study area.



Future Traffic Projections 

2013 2031 Anticipated 

% Growth

Eastbound 

Niska Road 

at Downey 

Road

200 335 68%

Westbound 

Niska Road 

East of 

Downey

Road

200 360 80%

2013-2031 PM Peak Hour Traffic Forecast 

Niska Road and Downey Road Intersection 

In order to understand and anticipate future traffic growth

and road intersection traffic pressures, a peak hour traffic

forecast analysis was conducted. This analysis helped to

determine the types of intersection improvements that

should be considered based on the anticipated volumes.

These peak hour growth numbers are provided below,

however the intersection design options will be fully

evaluated in the following study phase.



Problem/Opportunity Statement

• The purpose of this study is to undertake a Schedule C Municipal Class Environmental Assessment to assess the 
rehabilitation and replace options for Niska Road between the Bailey Bridge and Downey Road including 
improvements to the Downey and Niska Road intersection. 

• The current City of Guelph’s Official Plan recognizes Niska Road as a two-lane collector road which collects 
vehicle trips from the immediate area and provides for through movement for vehicular travel to/from arterial 
roadways and expressways.  A secondary function is to serve land access and to link the Townships of Puslinch 
and Guelph-Eramosa. 

• Segments of the Niska Road through the study corridor are nearing the end of their useful life and the single lane 
Niska Road Bailey Bridge, installed in 1974 as a temporary replacement, is in very poor condition and is also 
nearing the end of its life expectancy.

• A solution is required to address the deterioration and increasing maintenance costs to Niska Road 
infrastructure.  In addition to reviewing a variety of road cross-sections; impacts to the natural environment and 
community road safety issues; a range of bridge solutions will also be examined which includes bridge closure, 
bridge rehabilitation and bridge replacement.

• Completion of this Environmental Assessment is part of the process to enable the City of Guelph to address both 
the short-term and the long-term transportation needs for the local community and the connected overall 
transportation network.

• Social and economic impact, aquatic impact, natural environmental impact, archaeological assessments and 
heritage assessment will all be assessed as part of the Class EA study process.  Community safety and road safety 
will also be examined.  Presently, traffic volumes exceed regulatory thresholds and guidelines for a single lane 
bridge.

• The Local Community has identified 4 important considerations:

1. Consider how to maintain, preserve and protect natural environment and cultural heritage, 
viewscapes, historic character of existing road and rural/urban interface.

2. Consider the cultural and historical evaluation of the existing Bailey Bridge.

3. Consider health and safety of the local community.

4. Consider recreational opportunities.

• As an opportunity, the following bridge options shall be considered equally:

• Consider closing the bridge (i.e. allow pedestrian and bicycle traffic only)

• Consider rehabilitation of existing bridge

• Consider bridge removal

• Consider replacing existing bridge with a one lane bridge

• Consider replacing existing bridge with a two lane bridge

• The Municipal Class EA process allows for the Study Team to fully examine all options using context based design 
planning principles to identify and explore reasonable opportunities.



Alternative Solutions for Road

• Alternative 1 : Do Nothing / Repair and Maintain

• To assess what would happen if no action is taken to 

address the study concerns

• Includes efforts to maintain road in a “good state of repair”

• Alternative 2 : Repave Road Surface

• Involves the maintenance of the existing Niska Road which 

entails the repaving of the existing road from Ptarmigan 

Drive to the bridge at Speed River 

• Alternative 3 : Reconstruct Road 

• Involves the full reconstruction of Niska Road from 

Ptarmigan Drive to the bridge at Speed River



Alternative Solutions for Bridge

• Alternative 1: Do Nothing But Repair and Maintain 

• To assess what would happen if no action is taken to 

address the study concerns

• Includes efforts to rehabilitate the existing bailey bridge 

and maintain it in a “good state of repair” 

• Alternative 2: Close Bridge to Vehicular Traffic and 

Maintain

• Rebuild the existing Niska Road bridge to accommodate 

pedestrian and cyclist traffic only 

• Bridge would be closed to vehicular traffic

• Alternative 3: Remove Bridge and Do Not Replace 

Existing Bridge

• Convert Niska Road to a local residential street and cut-off 

any direct access to the west across the Speed River

• Involves downgrading Niska Road to local residential status, 

therefore no need to provide operational enhancements 

(pedestrian/cycling facilities, traffic calming, etc.)



Alternative Solutions for Bridge 

(Continued) 

• Alternative 4: Replace the Existing Bailey Bridge With New 

One Lane Structure and Provide Operational Improvements 

to Niska Road

• Addresses the need to replace the existing Bailey Bridge that 

has reached its end of life  

• Operational improvements to address existing traffic and safety 

issues will be considered (e.g. truck restrictions; traffic calming; 

bicycle/pedestrian facilities; and intersection improvements)

• Alternative 5: Replace the Existing Bailey Bridge with a Two 

Lane Structure and Provide Operational Improvements to 

Niska Road

• This alternative addresses the need to replace the existing 

Bailey Bridge with a two-lane vehicular structure over the 

Speed River

• Operational improvements to Niska Road (similar to those 

identified in Alternative 4) to address existing traffic and safety 

issues will be considered



Evaluation Criteria

Several criteria were used to evaluate each alternative  

including: 

1. Natural Environment

• Protected Areas

• Terrestrial Habitat

• Aquatic Habitat and Biology

• Hazard Lands

• Surface Water Quality and Drainage

• Groundwater Quality

2. Socio-economic / Cultural 

• Residents

• Community and Region

• Heritage Resources

• Local Economy

• Pedestrian and Cyclist Accessibility and Safety 

• Lifestyle and Culture

• Use/Access to Recreational Areas



Evaluation Criteria

(Continued)

3.   Financial Factors

• Construction and Demolition Costs

• Operation and Maintenance Costs

• Property Acquisition Costs

4.    Technical Factors

• Structural Condition

• Load Capacity and Remaining Life

• Traffic Volumes

• Traffic Impacts

• Geometry – Road Profile and Width 

• Roadside Safety

• Vehicular, pedestrian and cycle 

• Utility Impacts

• Emergency Access

• Stormwater Infrastructure

• Vehicular Safety 

• Use of Road 



Evaluation Criteria

(Continued)

5. Municipal Factors

• Conformity to City of Guelph Official Plan

• Compatibility with Surrounding Lands

• Impacts to the Functional needs of the Local 

Community

• Impacts to the Functional needs of the Surrounding 

‘greater’ Community

• Impacts on Future Developments

• Impacts and/or conformity to pass approved Class 

Environmental Assessment

6. Problem Statement

• Need to address repair / replacement of Niska Road 

Bridge

• Need to rehabilitate road infrastructure

• Need to address safety, cycling and pedestrian issues, 

heavy trucks

• Need to bring corridor up to present day standard



Evaluation of Alternatives for Road

B. Socio-Economic

• Residents

• Community and 

Region

• Heritage Resources

• Local Economy

• Pedestrian and 

Cyclist Accessibility 

and Safety

• Lifestyle and Culture

• Use/Access to 

Recreational Areas

Criteria Sections
Do Nothing/Repair 

and Maintain
Repave Reconstruct Road

A: Natural Environment

B: Social 

Economic/Cultural 

Environment

C: Financial Factors

D: Technical Factors

E: Problem Statement

Total Average

Recommendation Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward
Preliminary 

Preferred Solution 

Understanding the Rating System:
Least Preferred to Most Preferred 



Evaluation of Alternatives for Bridge

Criteria Sections
Do Nothing/Repair

and Maintain

Close Bridge to Vehicular 

Traffic and Maintain

Remove Bridge / Do 

Not Replace Bailey 

Bridge

Replace the Existing Bailey 

Bridge With a New One 

Lane Structure and Provide 

Operational Improvements 

to Niska Road

Replace the Existing Bridge 

With a New Two Lane 

Structure and Provide 

Operational Improvements 

to Niska Road

A: Natural Environment

B: Social Economic/Cultural 

Environment

C: Financial Factors

D: Technical Factors

E: Problem Statement

Total Average

Recommendation Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward
Preliminary Preferred 

Solution 

Understanding the Rating System:
Least Preferred to Most Preferred 



Preliminary Preferred Alternative 

Solution 
Based on the evaluation of alternative solutions for both Niska Road and the Niska Road 

Bailey Bridge within the study corridor, the Preliminary Preferred Alternative Solution to 

be carried forward into Phases 3 and 4 of the Class EA process is as follows:

Niska Road  

• The preliminary preferred solution is to Reconstruct Niska Road from the City 

limits to the Downey Road intersection and provide operational improvements to 

Niska Road

• Phase 3 will consider rural, urban and semi-urban cross-sections and 

pedestrian facilities

Niska Road Bridge  

• The preliminary preferred solution is to Replace the existing Bailey Bridge with a 

new two lane structure

Other Considerations 

• These are deemed ‘preliminary’ as public and agency stakeholder correspondence is still 

being collected

• Comments and input from PIC #1 will be incorporated into the study to assist in selection 

of the preferred alternative

• The preferred alternative will be presented at the second PIC, after which the conceptual 

design plan of the technically preferred alternative will be refined.

• In Phase 3, after the preferred alternative is chosen, the following design options will be 

considered for the Niska Road and Downey Road Intersection

• Traffic Circle/Roundabout

• Traffic Signals

• Stop Control



A Glimpse into the Future

Traffic Calming Options
- Phase 3 Considerations -

Upon completing Phase 2 of the EA process, design options for the preferred 

solutions are developed. The evaluation of design options in Phase 3 of the EA 

process continue to take in consideration Stakeholder concerns. As an example, one 

such concern is the potential of introducing traffic calming measures into the 

community.

Traffic Calming Measures

Traffic Calming is being requested due to the range of issues related to excessive 

traffic speeds, high traffic volumes and poor driver behavior within this road corridor. 

In an effort to resolve traffic concerns raised by neighbourhood residents, City of 

Guelph staff will work in a collaborative manner with area residents to develop a 

traffic management plan to address their concerns.

As Part of this Class EA process the City will explore both traditional traffic control 

techniques such as stop signs and warning signs, or physical ‘traffic calming’ 

measures such as road narrowing and landscaping.

The Class EA process will include options and recommendations identified in the City 

of Guelph’s Neighbourhood Traffic Management Policy.

http://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/6/61/Traffic-calmed_neighbourhood.jpg
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=nzgCxPeXisPhqM&tbnid=qnCKiDbHTCFbHM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.freeimages.com/photo/858296&ei=I9yLU7nMFdOYyASjlIDwBw&bvm=bv.67720277,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNF3HHYveeS-lS2OG9QIca_5AaiLZw&ust=1401761148995220
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=CciE-_pvQ901gM&tbnid=qCV_1vDzGIw-jM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.kamloopsnews.ca/article/20120626/KAMLOOPS0101/120629857/-1/kamloops/juniper-ridge-sign-campaign-targets-speeding-neighbours&ei=ANuLU474EMqNyAT8rYLIDg&bvm=bv.67720277,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNH6AdgYRi39TCgBeM2pi8hsPR_pVA&ust=1401760868157590
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=_UiBDmxjhrGXlM&tbnid=Gmo7s5CVoCYQaM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.henryfarm.ca/community/neighbourhood-watch&ei=mNuLU52iFI-ZyASi_ICoCQ&bvm=bv.67720277,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGE_6iavjAYHaxk9An0bqAsYOkv5g&ust=1401761019060466


Next Steps

• Review and finalize preferred solution in light of 

comments received.

• Develop and evaluate alternative road and bridge design 

concepts for preferred solution.

• Develop design concept for Niska/Downey Road 

Intersection.

• Present preliminary preferred design concepts at PIC #2 

(tentatively in Spring 2015).

• Based on input, confirm preferred solution.

• Complete technical deliverables including Traffic analysis 

for existing and future conditions.

• Develop and evaluate design concepts.

• We will present preliminary preferred design at PIC#2.



Invitation for Participation
• Public input is an important component of the decision-making 

process.

• You are invited to provide comments by completing the forms 
provided and submitting forms to the Study Team members 
below on or before December 19, 2014.

• We will review all materials presented today and incorporate 
feedback from public, agencies, property owners, etc.

• We will respond to written questions and comments.

• For further information, please contact either Leonard Rach or 
Brad Hamilton:

These presentation materials will be available online at:  
www.guelph.ca/niskaroad

THANK YOU FOR ATTENDING

Brad Hamilton, P. Eng.

City Project Engineer

City of Guelph

1 Carden Street

Guelph ON  N1H 3A1

T:  519-822-1260 x 2319

E:  brad.hamilton@guelph.ca

Leonard Rach, P. Eng.

Consultant Project Manager

R. J. Burnside & Associates Limited

292 Speedvale Avenue West, Unit 20

Guelph ON  N1H 1C4

T:  519-823-4995 x 3043

E:  leonard.rach@rjburnside.com













































































































































































































































































































 

 REPORT PD-2015-006 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement with R&C Holdings Inc. and 2120826 Ontario Ltd. - Part Lot 

20, Concession 7 
  
FILE: L04/R&C  
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report PD-2015-006 regarding the Agreement with R&C Holdings Inc. and 
2120826 Ontario Ltd. – Part Lot 20, Concession 7, be received; and 

That Council enact a By-law to authorize the entering into of an Agreement with R&C 
Holdings Inc. and 2120826 Ontario Ltd.  

DISCUSSION 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this Report is to obtain authorization from Council to enter into an 
Agreement with R&C Holdings Inc. and 2120826 Ontario Ltd. in order to clear three 
conditions of consent for County of Wellington Planning & Land Division Committee 
Consent Application B32/14 (Township file D10/R&C), in a manner that is satisfactory to 
the Township. 

Background: 

On June 4, 2014, the County of Wellington Planning & Land Division Committee issued 
Notice of Approval with Conditions under Section 53(14) of the Ontario Planning Act for 
consent application No. B32/14, where lands owned by R & C Holdings Inc. located at 
Part Lot 20, Concession 7, municipally known as 0 Wellington Road 34 are being 
severed and merged to lands owned by 2120826 Ontario Ltd located at Part Lot 20, 
Concession 7, municipally known as 20 Brock Road N . 
 
The following three conditions of approval required by the Township are being 
addressed in the agreement in order to proceed with consent final approval: 
 

9. THAT the Owner enters into an agreement with the Township to provide a 
written submission of a septic evaluation, prior to a building permit for the 
proposed warehouse addition on the proposed merged lot to the satisfaction of 

1 
  



 

the Township of Puslinch (providing certification that existing and future 
requirements will be met through OBC or an ECA from the Ministry of 
Environment; 

10. THAT compliance with the terms and conditions of current Site Plan 
Agreement (Registered Instrument No. WC224163) be addressed to the 
satisfaction of the Township of Puslinch; 
11. THAT the Owner enter into and register a new site plan agreement to the 
satisfaction of the Township on the consolidated parcel. 

As a result of discussions between the applicant and staff, it was determined that the 
intent and fulfilling of the three conditions is appropriately facilitated through an 
agreement to be registered on title against the Lands (see Schedule ‘A’).  

Once the agreement is registered the Township will proceed with the clearing of 
conditions No. 9, 10 and 11 of County of Wellington Planning & Land Division 
Committee Consent Application B32/14. 

Financial Implications 

None - all costs of registration and removal of the agreement will be borne by the 
applicant.  

Applicable Legislation and Requirements 

Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, C. 25 
  

2 
  



 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ – REPORT PD-2015-006 
 

 

 
3 

  



 

 

 

 

4 
  



 

 

 

 

5 
  












	2015 03 18 - Council Agenda 
	2015 03 04 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
	2015 02 11 -  Public Meeting  Minutes - Bill & Lisa Hamilton 
	Communications
	Item 6.1(a)
	Item 6.1(b)
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.2(b)
	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.5(a)
	Item 6.6(a)
	Item 6.7(a)

	Intergovernmental Items
	IG #1
	IG #2
	IG #3
	IG #4
	IG #5
	IG #6
	IG #7
	IG #8
	IG #9
	IG #10
	IG #11
	IG #12
	IG #13
	IG #14
	IG #15

	Reports
	Fire and Rescue Services Monthly Report - February 2015
	Report FIR-2015-001 - Fire Dispatch Services Agreement with the City of Guelph 
	Report FIN-2015-010 - Remuneration and Expenses Paid to Members of Council and Others During the Year 2014
	Report FIN-2015-011 - Temporary Borrowing By-law 
	Report FIN-2015-012 - 2014 Development Charges 
	Report FIN-2015-013 - Council One Third Tax Free Allowance 
	Report FIN-2015-014 - Treasurer's Investment Report for 2014
	Item 8.1(f) December 2014 Financial Report 
	Item 8.1(f)(ii) Cheque Register - Dec 1 to Dec 31, 2014

	Item 8.2(g) January 2015 Financials
	Item 8.2(g)(i) - Financial Report January 1, 2015
	Item 8.2(g)(ii) Cheque Register Jan 1 to Jan 31 2015
	Item 8.2(g)(iii) - Voided Cheque Register Jan 1 to Jan 31 2015
	Item 8.2(g)(iv) - Financial Report by Dept - Jan 2015
	Item 8.2(g)(v) Total Revenues, Contributions to Working Reserves and Expenditures - All Departments - Jan 2015 

	Chief Building Official Report - February 2015
	Report PD-2015-006 - Agreement with R&C Holdings Inc. and 2120826 Ontario Ltd. 

	By-Laws
	Item 14(a)
	Item 14(b)
	Item 14(c)
	Item 14(d)




